
 

Wolfeboro Planning Board Minutes 
September 5, 2023 
 

 

1 

TOWN OF WOLFEBORO 
PLANNING BOARD 
September 5, 2023 

APPROVED MINUTES 
 
 

I. Call to Order 
Chair Kathy Barnard called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. 
 

II. Introduction of Planning Board Members 
 

Members Present: Kathy Barnard, Chair, Doug Breskin, Vice-Chair, Brad Harriman, Selectmen’s 
Representative, John Thurston, Roger Murray, Vaune Dugan, Members, Julie Jacobs, Jane Nielsen, 
Alternates.  
 

Members Absent: Peter Goodwin, Member, Steve Webster, Alternate. 
 
Staff Present: Tavis Austin, Director of Planning and Development, Lee Ann Hendrickson, Administrative 
Secretary, Michaela Beckwith, Recording Secretary. 
 

III. Public Hearings  
Brewster Academy - Tax Map & Lot #218-150 Case #2023-13 – Site Plan Review – Permanent Ice Rink; 
continued from 8/15/2023 
Kathy Barnard indicated that Julie Jacobs and Jane Nielsen sat on the 8/15/2023 public hearing. She 
stated John Thurston and Vaune Dugan cannot vote on the application but can ask questions. 
 
Doug Breskin stated the Board received several documents, see attached.  
 
Susan Harrington, Chief Financial Officer, Brewster Academy, stated the documents submitted address 
issues and concerns noted by abutters. She reviewed the purpose of the installation of the existing 
outdoor hockey rink, noting that moving forward the rink would serve the boys and girls JV practices and 
help facilitate the JV hockey program. She stated they will not be abandoning the use of Pop Whalen Ice 
Arena.  
 
Peter Gilligan, Chief Operating Officer, Brewster Academy, reviewed the issues raised by abutters and 
Board members, with regard to the rationale for location of the hockey rink, see attached documents.  
 
Julie Jacobs stated that she visited the site and questioned alternative locations including existing green 
space and fields. She stated that a different location may also benefit students.  
 
Peter Gilligan stated Brewster hired architects and engineers to perform a comprehensive study; noting 
the existing location was recommended in the study. 
 
Jane Nielsen asked if cost came into consideration when the location was chosen.  
 
Peter Gilligan replied yes.  
 
Jane Nielsen questioned the permanence of other locations’ uses. 



 

Wolfeboro Planning Board Minutes 
September 5, 2023 
 

 

2 

 
John Thurston stated he was the Brewster Academy property today and was approached and asked to 
leave. He stated photographs were taken of his vehicle and stated he is discouraged by the plan 
presented; noting that his intent was to learn and gather more information for an alternative solution.  
 
Peter Gilligan stated he oversees campus maintenance and security and apologized for the interaction Mr. 
Thurston experienced; noting today was the first day of school.  
 
Roger Murray stated he had a different experience; noting that he parked in the Anderson Hall parking lot 
and walked around the rink and wasn’t bothered by anyone. He stated that if the rink was located on 
Clark Road, then abutters would have an issue and there could be environmental issues if moved by the 
soccer fields.  
 
Doug Breskin asked if there would be excessive traffic in the Anderson parking lot. 
 
Peter Gilligan stated only for the four Winter Classic hockey games and community events such as First 
Night. With regard to lighting, he stated that an expert from Longchamps Electric was present at the 
meeting and could address such. He stated Brewster would like to reduce the hours of use to Monday 
through Fridays 7:00AM to 8:30PM, Saturdays 7AM to 10PM and Sundays 10AM to 10PM all with no 
hockey after 8:30PM. He referred to the photometric assessment Brewster had completed. 
 
John Thurston questioned the setback issue and whether a boundary line adjustment is necessary. He 
asked if services are connected to houses on Green Street. 
 
Peter Gilligan stated the existing rink meets the setbacks from the boundary line.  
 
Kathy Barnard questioned if the Zamboni shed needed clarification. 
 
Peter Gilligan reviewed the landscaping and buffer plan, to include both plantings and fencing, see 
attached. He noted the hockey rink will be used four and half months per year. 
 
Jane Nielsen questioned the number of years until the trees mature. 
 
Peter Gilligan stated such would depend on species health and weather. 
 
Doug Breskin questioned the species of trees. 
 
Peter Gilligan replied spruce and rhododendron. Referencing noise concerns, he reviewed the plan for 
noise mitigation. He stated a schedule would be provided for when the rink would be in use for 
community review/notification.  
 
Kathy Barnard confirmed the use is not inclusive of the JV teams. 
 
Peter Gilligan stated the varsity teams would practice at the rink as well. 
 
Roger Murray asked if there would be free skate available. 
 
Peter Gilligan stated Brewster would be open to such. 



 

Wolfeboro Planning Board Minutes 
September 5, 2023 
 

 

3 

 
John Thurston stated the Board should be open and flexible to possibility of later hours for special events 
such as First Night. 
 
Peter Gilligan stated Brewster Academy doesn’t use an outdoor PA system. He referenced the sound 
engineering study that was conducted and reviewed such, see attached. 
 
Kathy Barnard questioned the noise of the hockey pucks make when hitting boards and glass of the rink. 
 
Doug Breskin suggested the noise of the pucks and rink machinery each be addressed separately.  
 
Kathy Barnard questioned whether the proposed Saturday games would be held during daytime hours.  
 
Peter Gilligan replied the four games are tentatively scheduled for: January 13, January 20, February 3, 
and February 10. 
 
Vaune Dugan questioned the absolute of daytime games. 
 
Jane Nielsen questioned 4 games versus 2 games discussed previously. 
 
Susan Harrington addressed the quantitative standards for the Town of Wolfeboro and the Universal 
Standards used in the comprehensive noise study that Brewster had completed, see attached. She stated 
the four games scheduled will take place during the day, two for girls’ program and two boys’ program. 
She stated the games would be daytime only. 
 
Doug Breskin noted the Town’s sound ordinance is qualitative not quantitative. He questioned the 
document Susan Harrington referenced, see attached.  
 
John Thurston questioned the noise ordinance. 
 
Tavis Austin stated the noise ordinance is 10:00PM. 
 
Susan Harrington referenced the issue relative to noise from the chiller. She stated Brewster had a more 
in-depth study performed with regard to such; noting a sound barrier is proposed. She read the following 
document from company, Everything Ice and reviewed the specifications of the sound barrier, see 
attached. 
 
Doug Breskin questioned the outside finish of the block wall.  
 
Susan Harrington stated such has not yet been decided and noted it would not be visible from the road. 
 
Doug Breskin stated he was concerned about the visibility of the wall from the neighbors. 

 
Doug Breskin questioned the height of the walls and glass. 
 
Susan Harrington stated a foam barrier was researched however, after further review it was found that 
such could damage the boards and in addition the noise reduction was minimal. 
 



 

Wolfeboro Planning Board Minutes 
September 5, 2023 
 

 

4 

John Thurston questioned if the use of soft pucks could be considered for practices. 
 
Susan Harrington stated she would speak to the athletic director regarding such. 
 
Kathy Barnard requested storm water runoff be addressed. 
 
Joanne Carpenter, RFS Engineering, reviewed proposed stormwater treatment measures and the Town 
and State’s stormwater regulations. She stated the stormwater runoff from the rink are directed to two 
(2) two hundred foot 24” diameter perforated pipes. She stated she performed calculations for when the 
ice melts; noting it would be more than a one-inch storm however, considerably less than a one-year 
storm. She stated the current rink design handles a fifty-year storm/event. 
 
Doug Breskin stated the Board received a letter from Amy Hines, 22 Green Street, see attached. 
 
Joanne Carpenter stated she assumes the question relates to the melting of the Zamboni ice pile; noting 
she is unable to speak to such. 
 
Doug Breskin asked if there are chemicals in the ice (referencing Ms. Hines’ letter). 
 
Joanne Carpenter replied no. 
 
Peter Gilligan referenced the proposed stormwater management plan with regard to the Zamboni ice 
pile; noting there would be no increase in runoff.  
 
John Thurston questioned the location of the proposed Zamboni ice storage area. 
 
Tavis Austin stated the rink and Zamboni shed meets the setbacks and noted the ice storage location does 
not need to meet setbacks. 
 
Roger Murray noted the buildings are existing and owned by Brewster.  
 
John Thurston questioned the location of the infiltration trenches. 
 
Joanne Carpenter stated the Zamboni ice pile will be infiltrated in the infiltration swale and not in the 
pipes that abut each side of the rink. 
 
John Thurston confirmed the area of the ice pile is not graded. 
 
Joanne Carpenter reviewed such and stated there is a small amount of fill on the Estabrook Road side. 
 
Doug Breskin questioned the schedule for improvements if the site plan is approved and whether the 
improvements would be completed prior to the start of practices. 
 
Peter Gilligan replied as soon as possible and the hope is that it would be completed however, there may 
be some items to be completed in the spring. 
 
Doug Breskin stated his main concern is the foundation for the chiller wall being completed before 
ground freezes.  



 

Wolfeboro Planning Board Minutes 
September 5, 2023 
 

 

5 

 
John Thurston asked if there is a plan to cover the rink in the future. 
 
Peter Gilligan stated such would be costly and is not currently being considered. 
 
Chairman Barnard opened the public hearing. 
 
Amy Hines, 22 Green Street, stated she is representing a neighbor that is not present this evening. She 
read the following letter from Al Pierce, resident of Green Street, see attached document. 
 
Susan Harrington stated she spoke to Al Pierce when Brewster made application to the ZBA in September 
2022 and noted she has tried to contact Al Pierce since however, has been unsuccessful. 
 
Peter Batchelder, 10 Green Street, stated it is his belief that the current location is the absolute worst 
location (behind Al Pierce’s house). He stated the lighting, sound and buffers proposed is what they 
should do. He stated the rink was proposed to be temporary and now they are asking that it be 
permanent. He stated the structure is huge and feels it is the opposite of what Brewster would want to 
do to maintain the village character of Wolfeboro. He stated the Zamboni is driven right behind Mr. 
Pierce’s house. He questioned compliance with the setback; noting that the rink may meet the setback 
however, the players benches are beyond such. He stated the rink infringes onto Mr. Pierce’s property. He 
stated Brewster is going to destroy the visual character of Wolfeboro and requested the rink be moved 
50-100 feet. He stated Brewster can and needs to move the rink.  
 
Dennis Schauer, 209 South Main Street, stated the genesis of the whole situation is that the abutters 
were told it was a temporary structure and asked if Brewster approached the Board for a permanent rink. 
He stated he feels the location is not appropriate and feels there are other options. He wished Brewster 
well however, feels the location of the structure is a mistake. 
 
Susan Harrington stated Brewster hears the concerns of its neighbors. She reviewed the Planning Board 
Notice of Decision, specifically point #5, dated September 20, 2022. She stated Brewster did not pitch the 
concept of a one-season rink. With regard to the setbacks on the Green Street side, she questioned the 
setback requirement being met. 
 
Tavis Austin stated Brewster complies with the 10’ setback. 
 
Nancy Hirshberg, 40 Clark Road, stated that although it may have been Brewster’s intent for the rink to be 
permanent, the notice received by the abutters stated a temporary ice rink. 
  
John Thurston reviewed the August 20, 2023 minutes; noting the minutes reflect that the rink was 
intended for one season and the structure would be removed after the season.  
 
There being no further questions or comments, Chairman Barnard closed the public hearing. 
 
Vaune Dugan stated she recalls temporary approval meaning a full site plan review; noting the Board still 
needed information for further review. 
 
Tavis Austin stated Brewster was not sure when they would be returning to the Board for site plan 
approval hence, the condition of approval. 



 

Wolfeboro Planning Board Minutes 
September 5, 2023 
 

 

6 

 
Roger Murray stated the Planning Board’s job is to ensure compliance with the zoning ordinance and 
applicable regulations. He stated the proposal meets the setback requirements and permitted use 
requirements. He stated Brewster has tried to address the concerns noted by abutters and feels the 
Board and Brewster has listened. 
 
Doug Breskin stated that the decision-making process cannot be solely based on the regulations being 
met but also the abutters and property values.  
 
Tavis Austin recommended requesting additional information if the Board chooses. He stated the noise 
ordinance doesn’t address an outdoor recreational facility as part of a campus; noting such may be a 
point for future discussion. He stated the noise ordinance speaks more to construction noise rather than 
recreational noise. He stated the applicant is suggesting an eight-foot fence; noting such may require a 
variance and recommended a six-foot fence. He stated the Board needs to make a determination on the 
sound block finish; noting the architectural design standards state concrete block as a prohibited product. 
 
Vaune Dugan questioned whether Brewster can use the rink if the conditions are not fully met prior to 
intended use. 
 
Tavis Austin stated the language of the Notice of Decision would determine the use of the rink. 
 
John Thurston questioned whether the face of the concrete block could be covered with a material that 
meets the architectural design standards. 
 
Doug Breskin noted the texture of the foam block faces the chiller and the smooth side faces out. He 
stated how the block will deaden sound from the chiller and that the block could be finished with 
clapboard or stucco material.  
 
Julie Jacobs questioned if the exposed block’s exterior surface is painted, is it still considered exposed. 
 
Vaune Dugan stated that the block should have screening or covering.   
 
John Thurston stated the plan doesn’t depict bleachers. 
 
Tavis Austin stated bleachers are not proposed.  
 
Jane Nielson confirmed the applicant would have to return to the Board if they were to want to add 
bleachers in the future. 
 
Tavis Austin referenced the four conditions of approval and recommended a fifth condition to include the 
information included in the 16 pages provided by applicant. 
 
Doug Breskin recommended a condition to include the improvements relative to lights and noise be 
incorporated prior to use this upcoming season. 
 
Tavis Austin recommended additional conditions to include six-foot fencing and exterior block wall. 
 



 

Wolfeboro Planning Board Minutes 
September 5, 2023 
 

 

7 

Roger Murray stated the Planner Review references security and questioned such; noting there should be 
security for the fence. 
 
Tavis Austin recommended the following conditions of approval; 

1. The following plans, as amended to the date of this approval are incorporated into the approval:  
Plan Set: Materials as received on July 12, 2023, and September 5, 2023 

2. Applicant shall be responsible for the payment of all recording fees for Notice of Decision.   
3. Applicant shall provide a materials list for the exterior finishes of the fence and chiller surround 

structures for review by staff. 

4. Fence and chiller enclosure to be constructed prior to operation of rink. 

5. Applicant shall post security pursuant to §173-16 related to proposed landscaping improvements. 

6. Applicant shall comply with those conditions presented in their 16-page submission received 

September 05, 2023, at the Planning Board: 

a. All site lights to be lowered to 20’ in height; ‘barn door’ light shields to be installed on those 

fixtures along Green Street side of rink; 

b. Rink use limited to four and a half months per year; 

c. Install property line fence along the back of the Green Street properties;  

d. Trees and bushes to be planted along Anderson Hall parking lot, blocking glare and view of rink 

from Main Street; 

e. Rink lights will be off Sunday through Friday by 8:30 PM, Saturdays lights off by 10 PM with no 

hockey after 8:30 PM. 

f. Rink lights will be off whenever facility not in use; 

g. A timer will be used to ensure that lights are off by the stated times, and lights will be manually 

turned off earlier if the facility not in use; 

h. For noise concerns, the following schedule will be utilized: 

i. Monday – Friday: 7:00 AM to 8:30 PM (lights off at 8:30 PM) 

ii. Saturday: 7:00 AM to 10:00 PM with no hockey after 8:30 PM 

iii. Sunday: 10:00 AM to 8:30 PM. 

iv. Only four daytime games will be played per year/season; advance schedule to be posted 

for these games. 

v. There will be no music/public address system at the rink. 

vi. Noise containment wall to be installed around the chillers. 

Kathy Barnard removed the condition of storing the Zamboni on the subject property. 
 
It was moved by Kathy Barnard to approve the Brewster Academy Site Plan Review application 
(permanent ice rink). Roger Murray seconded the motion. Roll call vote: Julie Jacobs – yes, Kathy 
Barnard – yes, Jane Nielson – no, Doug Breskin – yes, Brad Harriman – yes. Roger Murray – yes. The 
motion passed (5-1-0). 
 
 
O’Hare Enterprises – 33 Tips Cove Road – Tax Map & Lot #240-001 – Case #2023-15 – Special Use Permit 
for Construction in Wetlands Buffer Setback for Pickleball Court  
Kathy Barnard appointed Jane Nielsen, Alternate, sit in Peter Goodwin’s place as the alternate.  
 



 

Wolfeboro Planning Board Minutes 
September 5, 2023 
 

 

8 

Jim Rines, Horizons Engineering representing O’Hare Enterprises, reviewed his letter dated August 7, 
2023, see attached.  
 
Julie Jacobs questioned surface play or pathway where the court is located in relation to where the 
setback is located.  
Jim Rines replied the slope of the court and reviewed the proposal.   
 
John Thurston questioned the 22 square feet noted in the plan.  
 
Jim Rines reviewed the Special Use Permit criteria, see attached. 
 
Kathy Barnard read the Conservation Commission’s comments, see attached. 
 
Jim Rines stated that any vegetation that is disturbed will be replaced.  
 
Roger Murray asked if the plan submitted is the 2021 plan or an amended 2021 plan. 
 
Jim Rines stated the plan submitted is the 2021 plan.  
 
Roger Murray questioned if the revision should be resubmitted with the application. 
 
Vaune Dugan asked if the 12’ could be put on one side to avoid the setback. 
 
Jim Rines stated the submitted plan to have the pickleball court be centered on the existing basketball 
court is critical to the applicant.  
 
Roger Murray questioned placing the pickleball court on the tennis court like Foss Field. 
 
Tavis Austin stated the court is not a structure. 
 
Roger Murray stated a structure is defined as something that is built or constructed with a fixed location 
on the ground.  
 
John Thurston asked if there are concrete footings. 
 
Jim Rines replied no. 
 
Julie Jacobs asked if the surface is asphalt. 
 
Jim Rines replied no. 
 
John Thurston questioned the type of proposed vegetation.  
 
Jim Rines replied shrubs. 
 
Kathy Barnard opened and closed public hearing. 
 
There being no public present, Kathy Barnard closed the public hearing. 



 

Wolfeboro Planning Board Minutes 
September 5, 2023 
 

 

9 

 
Tavis Austin recommended the following conditions of approval; 

1. The following plans, as stamped received on August 7, 2023, and/or as amended by the Planning 
Board approval, are incorporated into the any subsequent building permit application related 
thereto. 

2. The applicant shall be responsible for the payment of all recording fees for the Notice of Decision. 
 
Kathy Barnard noted the following findings of fact; no impact to abutters and Conservation Commission 
made recommendations and those recommendations will be implemented. 

 
It was moved by John Thurston to approve the O’Hare Enterprises Special Use Permit application 
subject to the recommended conditions of approval. Vaune Dugan seconded the motion. All members 
voted in favor. The motion passed (6-1-0). 

 
Vaune Dugan stated she feels the application does not meet Criteria A. 
 
 
Christopher Melnik – 104 Filter Bed Road – Tax Map #189-009 – Case #2023-16 – Site Plan Review – 
Conversion to Multi Family, addition of 3rd dwelling unit  
 
Tavis Austin stated the applicant is not present. 
 
Roger Murray stated the application is incomplete therefore, the Board cannot act on such. 
 
It was moved by John Thurston to deny the Christopher Melnik Site Plan Review application without 
prejudice. Julie Jacobs seconded the motion. All members voted in favor. The motion passed (6–0–0). 
 
Roger Murray questioned if there are three approved units in the building. 
 
Tavis Austin replied no. He stated the property was sold as a three-unit building; noting the application 
would be authorizing the second floor of an existing structure with no site plan changes. 

 
IV. Discussion items 

a. 2024 Meeting Schedule 
Roger Murray noted the election is November 5th not 12th. 
 
Tavis Austin stated he would confirm with the Town Clerk. 
 
The Board agreed to maintain meetings for the first and third Tuesdays of each month at 7:00 pm. 
 

b. 2024 Budget 
Roger Murray questioned whether such includes sufficient funds for a recording secretary.  
 
Tavis Austin replied yes.  

 
John Thurston stated the Board of Selectmen discussed circuit planners and questioned whether such 
falls in the Board’s budget. 
 



 

Wolfeboro Planning Board Minutes 
September 5, 2023 
 

 

10 

Brad Harriman stated such would be included in the Planning Department’s budget. 
 

c. Affordable Housing/Inclusionary Zoning 
Kathy Barnard stated affordable housing/inclusionary zoning will be the topic of the October 17th 
Planning Board meeting. 
 
Roger Murray suggested grammatical amendments to the newspaper advertisement. 
 

d. ZBA Special Exception: 57 Crooked Pond Lane 
Vaune Dugan stated such crosses her property; she has no issues with such. 
 
Kathy Barnard confirmed the proposal meets setbacks/requirements. 
 
John Thurston questioned impact of runoff to abutters and requested details related to such. 
 
Julie Jacobs stated the location is an appropriate place for the garage. 
 
Vaune Dugan stated a Shoreland permit is required. 
 

e. Wolfeboro Waters 
Kathy Barnard stated Wolfeboro Waters forwarded Questions to Ask Before Project Approval to Limit 
Impacts on Surface Waters to the Board for consideration during the application review process, 
when applicable. 

 
V. Public Comment 

Kathy Barnard stated the Board received a letter from Bill and Becky Swaffield regarding Lone Wolf, see 
attached letter dated August 20, 2023. 
 
Tavis Austin stated the condition(s) of approval state music be indoors and unamplified; noting he doesn’t 
see it as a direct violation.  
 
John Thurston referred to the application and Conditions of Approval.  
 
Tavis Austin questioned whether the Board wishes to remove outdoor seating. 

 
The Board discussed the conditions of approval and agreed to send a letter and copy of the conditions of 
approval to the Police Department. 
 
Tavis Austin suggested that a letter be drafted informing the owner of the complaint and if they fail to 
comply, outdoor seating be revoked. 
 
Julie Jacobs asked if the letter could include the removal of outside furniture prior to snowfall and enclose 
a copy of the minutes with the letter. 
 
It was moved by John Thurston to send a letter to the applicant notifying them of the complaint (letter 
to include conditions of approval) and forward a copy of the approval to the Police Department. Kathy 
Barnard seconded the motion. All members voted in favor. The motion passed (6-0-0). 

 



 

Wolfeboro Planning Board Minutes 
September 5, 2023 
 

 

11 

VI. Approval of Minutes:  
August 15, 2023 
Corrections:  Throughout document change “Hermann” to “Harriman” 
   Page 3, Stormwater Controls; change “vein” to “main” and “separate” to “septic” 
   Page 4, 11th bullet; change “Doul” to “Dow” 

Page 5, last bullet; change “Ed Maris” to “Edie Desmaris” and change “Mr. Reese” to 
“Ms. DeVries” 
Page 6 , 4th paragraph, change “Chair K Barnard” to “Vice-Chair D. Breskin” 
Page 7, 14th paragraph; add “drainage” following “and”, 6th paragraph; change “Toad” 
to “road, 12th paragraph change “step” to “staff”, 17th paragraph; change “Disruption” 
to “Alteration” 
Page 8, 11th paragraph; change “unused” to “in use” 
Page 8, 14th paragraph; change “Chief Marketing Officer” to “Chief Operating Officer” 
Page 12, Public Comments, 1st paragraph; change “disruptive” to “disturbing”, change 
“labor” to “neighbor”, change “There’s a lot of debris that lands on my grass.” to 
“There’s a lot of pucks banging on the glass.” Change “Neighbor on South Main 
Street” to “Dennis Schauer, South Main Street,” 
Page 13, 6th paragraph; change “again” to “game” 
Page 18, 9th paragraph; change “louder” to “loud or”, change “And he says” to “Any 
such” 
Page 19, 7th paragraph; change “SFO” to “Estabrook”, 8th paragraph; change 
“Neighbor on South Main Street” to “Dennis Schauer, South Main Street” 

 
It was moved by Kathy Barnard to approve the August 15, 2023 Planning Board minutes as amended. 
Doug Breskin seconded the motion. Kathy Barnard, Doug Breskin, Brad Harriman, Roger Murray voted 
in favor. Vaune Dugan, John Thurston abstained. The motion passed (4-0-2). 
 
June 6, 2023 
Corrections: Page 1, Members Present; change “Robert Murray” to “Roger Murray” and add 

summary of the Planning Board and public’s comments for Robert Beckwith public 
hearing 

   Page 3, review 3) – the proposed lot does not conflict with Percy’s well easement 
Page 3, add summary of the Planning Board and public’s comments for Ferncliff Trust 
and TCW Property Development, LLC and Peapod, LLC public hearings (including the 
requirement that the area under the deck next to the parking lot be screened and 
the configuration of the awning  changed) 
Page 4, add summary of the Planning Board comments for Hunter’s preliminary 
discussion 

July 11, 2023 
July 18, 2023 
 
It was moved by John Thurston to approve the June 6, 2023 Planning Board minutes as amended and 
approve the July 11, 2023 and July 18, 2023 Planning Board minutes as submitted. Kathy Barnard 
seconded the motion. All members voted in favor. The motion passed (6-0-0). 

 
 
It was moved by John Thurston to adjourn the September 5, 2023 Planning Board meeting. Kathy Barnard seconded 
the motion. All members voted in favor. The motion passed. 



 

Wolfeboro Planning Board Minutes 
September 5, 2023 
 

 

12 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:44PM.  
 
Respectfully Submitted,  

Michaela M. Beckwith 

Michaela M. Beckwith 
 
*** Please note these minutes are subject to amendments and approval at a later date. *** 
















































































































	TOW PB 9.5.2023 Approved Minutes
	pb_9.5.23_with_attachments_1



